

# **Allegheny County**

# **Regulated Entities Portal (REP)**

# **Public User's Guide**

### PREPARED FOR

# **Allegheny County Health Department**

Version: 1.1

November 5<sup>th</sup>, 2021 (updated 5/25/23)

# enfoTech

1368 How Lane North Brunswick, New Jersey 08902 www.enfotech.com

### Approval/Concurrence

Action	Role	Approver Name	Approval Date

### **Revision History**

Version	Date	Created By	Reviewed By	Description
1.0	11/05/2021	Taylor Xu		Initial Draft
1.1	5/25/2023	Allason Holt		Text revisions (pg 7)

### **Table of Contents**

1 INTRODUCTION	4
1.1 OVERVIEW OF REP SYSTEM:	4
1.2 REP System Goals and Benefits:	4
1.3 MINIMUM SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	5
2 SYSTEM FEATURES OVERVIEW	6
3 REGISTER AN ACCOUNT IN REP-PUBLIC PORTAL	7
3.1 CREATE A RO ACCOUNT	7
3.2 CREATE A CONSULTANT/PREPARER ACCOUNT	11
3.3 CREATE A GENERAL PUBLIC ACCOUNT	15
4 USER ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT	20
4.1 REP WEBSITE LOGIN	20
4.2 Forgot Password	22
4.3 MY ACCOUNT	22
4.3.1 Basic Info	23
4.3.2 Account Type	23
4.3.3 Change Password/Pin	24
4.3.4 Security Questions	25
4.3.5 Consultant	26
4.3.6 Verification	27
5 ANNUAL EMISSION INVENTORY FORM	
5.1 BASIC INFO TAB	29
5.1.1 Source	
5.1.2 Contact	
5.1.3 Stack	31
5.1.4 Emission Unit	33
5.1.5 Activity & Emission	
5.1.5.1 Activity Information Tab	
5.1.5.2 Emission Tab	
5.2 ATTACHMENT TAB	
5.3 PAYMENT TAB	
6 PUBLIC USERS SUBMIT INVOICE PAYMENT IN REP-PUBLIC PORTAL	
6.1 ONLINE INVOICE PAYMENT	
7 APPENDIX A: ACRONYMS & DEFINITIONS	

### **1** Introduction

### 1.1 Overview of REP System:

The federal Clean Air Act requires that each state maintain an inventory of air pollution emissions for certain facilities and update this inventory every year. Allegheny County Health Department (ACHD) emissions inventory system is called the Regulated Entities Portal (REP). The REP System is a web-based application accessible to the participating regulated facilities via the Internet. The REP system will serve as an electronic file cabinet to manage Emission Inventory (EI) Reporting forms provided by the Agency and receive/store EI reports submitted by regulated facilities. Participating facility access privileges are administrated through the use of a username, password, and PIN. All EI report submissions are validated via PIN/Security Question authentication with software security to ensure that the content of the data is original, truthful, legitimate, and unaltered.

The ACHD maintains Emissions Inventory (EI) reports of air pollution from commercial, industrial, and governmental sources in Allegheny County, Pennsylvania. Each year, approximately 75 facilities report emissions to the ACHD. Emissions data received by ACHD is submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (PA DEP) and the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) to be added to the national data bank. This information is used to monitor air pollution trends, determine the effectiveness of current air pollution control programs, serve as a basis for future year projections of air quality, track source compliance, provide information for permit review, and calculate the emissions portion of the annual air quality fee.

REP reports are due by March 15 each year. The ACHD is required to notify each facility at least 45 days prior to the deadline for submitting the report. This notification usually occurs in mid-January.

The REP-Public System includes the following Modules:

- Dashboard
- New Submittal
- Pending Submittals
- Submitted Submittals
- Pay Invoice
- My Account Management

### 1.2 REP System Goals and Benefits:

There are several beneficial goals that have been considered for REP System. Among them are:

- Support online availability of up-to-date REP reporting requirements and tracking status of submitted submittals.
- Improve the accuracy of data by eliminating potential errors that would otherwise be introduced through manual data entry.
- Improve the security of submissions from regulated facilities.
- Reduce the regulated facility's costs by offering a streamlined reporting method using readily available computer tools.

- Save the Agency's administration costs by reducing and eventually better-utilizing resources required for managing paper-based EI Reports.
- Improve the overall effectiveness of Title V programs with faster responses for data analyses, compliance assessment, enforcement support, and decision-making.

### **1.3 Minimum System Requirements**

Participating facilities will need to have the ability to access the ACHD's REP System website through the Internet. Typically, such access is available either through a dedicated connection through the facility's local area network or through a connection to an Internet Service Provider.

The performance of the REP system will vary based on the computer's internet connection speed, CPU, Operating System, and available memory. Following web browsers are recommended:

- > Web Brower:
  - Google Chrome
  - Mozilla Firefox
  - o Microsoft Edge
  - Apple Safari

### 2 System Features Overview

In the REP-Public System, Public users will be able to maintain user account profiles, submit online submittals, and track submitted submittals. Public user with the "Responsible Official" (RO) role has the additional feature to link Consultant/Preparer to the facility.

For the User Account Management Module, Public users will be able to:

- Self-register a facility user account
- Request for a new password
- Modify account profile
- Update PIN and Security Questions
- RO user may associate Consultant/Preparer facility user(s) to the facility

For the Upcoming Obligations Module, Public users will be able to:

- Complete Annual Emission Inventory Form (including information about the source, contact, stack, emission unit, activity, emission)
- Perform an Emission Calculation
- Certify and submit submittals online

For the Submitted Submittals Module, Public users will be able to:

- Track submitted submittals
- Check the summary report for information about emission activity calculations

In the following sections, all the features in the REP-Public system listed above will be described in detail.

### 3 Register an Account in REP-Public Portal

The REP-Public Portal supports three types of public accounts – Responsible Official, Preparer/Consultant, and General Public. Each account type has different access privileges in the REP-Public Portal as the following listed:

#### 1. Responsible Officer (RO) - Limited to one RO per facility

- Prepare, certify, and submit the submittal.
- Apply, amend, renew, or withdraw a submittal.
- Track submittal processing status.
- Manage submittal history.
- Manage/add consultant/Preparer.
- Use the system regularly for data entry/query, correspondence, tracking submittal review status.

#### 2. Consultant/Preparer<sup>1</sup> (Prepare-only)

- Prepare the online data in the submittal for a RO.
- Use the system regularly for data entry, correspondence, and review of the status of submittal.
- Search and view data available from Public Portal.

#### 3. General Public

- A person who is not a RO or a Preparer/Consultant, but needs to interact with the Public Portal.
- Access privileges include: (1) pay invoice, (2) respond to Authority-issued public notices.

Account Privilege	Responsib le Officer	Preparer/ Consultant	General Public
Certify/Submit data to the Authority	Yes		
Prepare data	Yes	Yes	
Pay invoice	Yes	Yes	Yes
Respond to Authority-issued Public Notices	Yes	Yes	Yes

A summary of user account type and account privilege is shown in the table below:

### 3.1 Create a RO Account

A RO account allows public users to certify submittal types for selected facilities. Authority users manage the RO's authorization(s) based on the submittal group. ROs can view the submitted data for the facilities with which the RO is associated.

Please note:

- RO accounts are limited to one per facility
- Historical submittals belong to the facility and <u>NOT</u> the person who submitted the submittal.
- Any active RO can view historical submittals of selected facilities for which the RO is responsible.
- If any ROs become inactive, they would no longer have access to the facility's submitted data.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Consultant/Preparer can only work under the RO's authorization.

When opening the REP-Public Portal website, Public users should click on the "Register Account" button on the screen.

	Publ	ic Port	al	
All	egheny Cour	nty Health [	Department	
Usernam	e			
Password	Forget Pass	word?)		0
		Login		

As the screenshot below shows, there should be four steps for creating an account:

- 1. Basic Information
- 2. Account Type
- 3. Security Questions
- 4. Final Review

O Du			oooune i yp	e Security Qi	destions @ Find Review
Personal Info					
Title: Firs	t Name	Middle Initial	Last Name	User Name	A username will be suggested to you when you enter your first and last
Comployer	Required.	Job	Required. Position with Emp	Required.	You may change the suggested username in the Username field. Once your user account is created, your username cannot be changed.
<ol> <li>Required.</li> </ol>					
Office Phone Numb	er M	obile Phone Numb	er Fax NL	Imber	
000-000-000x	0000	000-000-0000	000	-000-0000	
<ol> <li>Required.</li> <li>Email</li> </ol>					

Public users are asked to fill in information for the fields; those marked with red frames are the required ones. If the email has been registered for other existing accounts, a warning message "Email already registered." would be displayed.

After filling in the required information in the first step – Basic Information, Public users would click on the "Next" step to select the desired account type. As the screenshot below shows, there are three options – RO, Consultant, and General Public. When Public users click on the "RO" option, an explanation will pop up on the right. Public users would then click on "Next."

ACHD Air Quality User Registration	
① Basic Information ② Account Type ③ Security Question	ons ④ Final Review
Account Type	
Account Type	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>

In the third step – Security Questions, there should be five security questions and answers for Public users to fill in. Public users should click on the arrow for each security question and select a question from the dropdown list. Public users should provide a unique answer to each question, as these security questions would be referenced during the submittal process. Besides, Public users could click on the eye icon next to each answer to view the answer, or else they would be displayed in asterisks for confidential reasons.

🗲 ACHD Air Qua	lity User Registration			
	(1) Basic Information	② Account Type	③ Security Questions	④ Final Review
Security Question	ns			One of the following accurity questions
<b>1</b> ©	Required.		~	one of the following security questions from this list will appear when completing each submittal. Please provide a unique response to each question.
	Please select the question first.		٢	Answers are case-sensitive.
<b>2</b> Q			~	
	Required.			
A	Please select the question first.		٢	
3 0	D Dequired		~	
A	<ul> <li>Please select the question first.</li> </ul>		۲	
4 0	Required.		~	
	Please select the question first.		()	

In the final step – Final Review, Public users should make sure the information for the RO account registration is correct – name, employer, job position, office phone number, mobile phone number, fax number, and email. In addition, public users would also need to click on the checkbox to confirm whoever is registering is not a robot. Finally, Public users could click on the "Register" button to confirm the registration. Besides, Public users could also click on the "Previous" button to go to previous pages and update them on any registration steps.

#### **Final Review**

Demo Address Line 1, Demo Cit	y 12345		
123@123.com J 123-456-7890			
8			
Not a robot.	CAPTCHA		
			Previous Regist

(	Registration Successful	
	Congratulations! Your account has been created succesfully. Please check your e-mail for your temporary password. To fully activate your account, please follow the procedure below:	
I	If you do not receive the confirmation email within the next hour, please check your Junk Mail folder and update your rules to allow emails from [DEQ@deq.state.or.us]	
I	If you have any questions for account registration, please contact [DEQ@deq.state.or.us]	
I	Thank you for registering with the Environmental Data Management System.	
	Ва	ick to Login

they should reach out to the administrator, following the procedure as listed in the screenshot.

### 3.2 Create a Consultant/Preparer Account

A Consultant/Preparer account allows Public users to prepare data for the facility's RO representative but is not certified to submit the submissions on RO's behalf. Creating a Consultant/Preparer account is similar but simpler to that of the RO account – Public users enter the basic contact information: name, address, email, and phone number to set up an account.

When opening the Public Portal website, Public users should click on the "Register Account" button on the screen.

ACHD Air Quality Allegheny County Health Department	
Public Portal egheny County Health Department	
e	
I (Forget Password?)	
Login	
	ACHD Air Quality Allegheny County Health Department Public Portal agheny County Health Department (Forget Password?) Cogin

As the screenshot below shows, there should be four steps for creating an account:

- 1. Basic Information
- Account Type
   Security Questions
   Final Review

		0,	iooouni iyp	e obcounty q	destions (Armarkeview
Personal Info					
Title:	First Name	Middle Initial	Last Name	User Name	A username will be suggested to you when you enter your first and last name.
► Fmployer	<ul> <li>Required.</li> </ul>	dot	Required. Position with Emp	Required.	You may change the suggested username in the Username field. Once your user account is created, your username cannot be changed.
<ol> <li>Required.</li> </ol>	3				
Office Phone	Number	Mobile Phone Num	per Fax Nu	imber	
000-000-0	0000x0000	000-000-0000	000	-000-0000	
• Required.					

Public users are asked to fill in information for the fields; those marked with red frames are the required ones. If the email has been registered for other existing accounts, a warning message "Email already registered." would be displayed.

After filling in the required information in the first step – Basic Information, Public users would click on the "Next" step to select the desired account type. As the screenshot below shows, there are three options – RO, Consultant, and General Public. When Public users click on the "Consultant" option, an explanation will pop up on the right. Public users would then click on "Next."

ACHD Air Quality User Registration	
① Basic Information ② Account Type ③ Security Question	ons ④ Final Review
Account Type	
Please Note: Account Type cannot be changed once registered.      If you are not sure which account type to choose, please refer to the HELP document here.	HELP ME CHOOSE
Account Type *	A Responsible Officer (RO) is responsible for ensuring that information submitted to the Authority on behalf of an associated facility (or facilities) is accurate through the portal. The RO may permit a consultant to prepare a submittal in the system through an associated account, however, only the RO may certify and submit the submittal.
Previous	<b>Consultant</b> A Consultant may prepare a submittal form for a Responsible Official (RO). To prepare submittals for an RO, a Consultant account needs to be associated with an RO account (by the RO). Only an RO may certify and submit submittals.
	General Public A Public account grants privileges to pay invoices and respond to the Authority's public notices. A Public account does not grant access to preparing or submitting a submittal in the portal.

In the third step – Security Questions, there should be five security questions and answers for Public users to fill in. Public users should click on the arrow for each security question and select a question from the dropdown list. Public users should provide a unique answer to each question, as these security questions would be referenced during the submittal process. Besides, Public users could click on the eye icon next to each answer to view the answer, or else they should be displayed in asterisks for confidential reasons.

	(1) Basic Information	② Account Type	③ Security Questions	④ Final Review
Security Question	s			
	Required.		~	One of the following security questions from this list will appear when completing each submittal. Please provide a unique response to each question.
	Please select the question first.		٢	Answers are case-sensitive.
2 (0)			~	
	Please select the question first.		<b>@</b>	
	Required.			
	Please select the question first.			
<ul> <li>4</li> <li>Q</li> <li>4</li> </ul>	Required.		~	
A			۲	

In the final step – Final Review, Public users should make sure the information for the RO account registration is correct – name, employer, job position, office phone number, mobile phone number, fax number, and email. In addition, public users would also need to click on the checkbox to confirm whoever is registering is not a robot. Finally, Public users could click on the "Register" button to confirm the registration. Besides, Public users could also click on the "Previous" button to go to previous pages and update any registration steps.

#### **Final Review**

🖂 Demo Address Line 1, I	emo City 12345		
@ 123@123.com			
J 123-456-7890			
Not a robot.	reCAPTCHA		
		1	Previous Registe

(	Registration Successful
	Congratulations! Your account has been created succesfully. Please check your e-mail for your temporary password. To fully activate your account, please follow the procedure below:
L	If you do not receive the confirmation email within the next hour, please check your Junk Mail folder and update your rules to allow emails from [DEQ@deq.state.or.us]
L	If you have any questions for account registration, please contact [DEQ@deq.state.or.us]
L	Thank you for registering with the Environmental Data Management System.
	Back to Login

they should reach out to the administrator, following the procedure as listed in the screenshot.

### 3.3 Create a General Public Account

A General Public account allows Public users to submit comments to the Authority's public notice events. Creating a General Public account is similar but simpler to that of the RO account – Public users enter the basic contact information: name, address, email, and phone number to set up an account.

When opening the Public Portal website, Public users should click on the "Register Account" button on the screen.

	Public Portal	
A	legheny County Health Department	
Usernam	10	
Passwor	d (Forget Password?)	
	1.00	
2		

As the screenshot below shows, there should be four steps for creating an account:

- 1. Basic Information
- Account Type
   Security Questions
   Final Review

	() Basic Infor	rmation ② A	Account Typ	e ③ Security Q	uestions ④ Final Review
Personal Info					A username will be suggested to you
Title:	First Name	Middle Initial	Last Name	User Name	when you enter your first and last name.
Employer	<ul> <li>Required.</li> </ul>	dot	Required. Position with Empl	Required.	You may change the suggested username in the Username field. Once your user account is created, your username cannot be changed.
Required Office Phone	l. e Number	Mobile Phone Num!	oer Fax Nu	mber	
000-000-	-0000x0000	000-000-0000	000-	000-0000	
Required.  Email					
Email will be u	sed to send out the pas	ssword. Please make su	e it's valid.		

Public users are asked to fill in information for the fields; those marked with red frames are the required ones. If the email has been registered for other existing accounts, a warning message "Email already registered." would be displayed.

After filling in the required information in the first step – Basic Information, Public users would click on the "Next" step to select the desired account type. As the screenshot below shows, there are three options – RO, Consultant, and General Public.

When Public users click on the "General Public" option, an explanation will pop up on the right. Public users would then click on "Next."

← ACHD Air Quality User Registration	
① Basic Information ② Account Type ③ Security Question	ons ④ Final Review
Account Type  Account Type  Account Type *  RO Consultant General Public  Next	<b>EXAMPLE IN THE CHOOSE</b> <b>IDENTIFY OF CONSTITUTION OF CONSTITUTICON OF CONSTITUCICON OF CONSTITUCION OF CONSTITUCICON OF CONSTITUCON</b>

In the third step – Security Questions, there should be five security questions and answers for Public users to fill in. Public users should click on the arrow for each security question and select a question from the dropdown list. Public users should provide a unique answer to each question, as these security questions would be referenced during the submittal process. Besides, Public users could click on the eye icon next to each answer to view the answer, or else they should be displayed in asterisks for confidential reasons.

	1 Basic Information	② Account Type	③ Security Questions	④ Final Review
ecurity Question	15			
□ ◎ [	Required.		~	One of the following security questions from this list will appear when completing each submittal. Please provide a unique response to each question.
	Please select the question first.		۲	Answers are case-sensitive.
2 0	Parried		~	
	Please select the question first.		<b>@</b>	
3 @			~	
<u>ه</u>	<ul> <li>Required.</li> <li>Please select the question first.</li> </ul>		۲	
4 0	Dentified		~	
	required.		0	

In the final step – Final Review, Public users should make sure the information for the RO account registration is correct – name, employer, job position, office phone number, mobile phone number, fax number, and email. In addition, public users would also need to click on the checkbox to confirm whoever is registering is not a robot. Finally, Public users could click on the "Register" button to confirm the registration. Besides, Public users could also click on the "Previous" button to go to previous pages and update any registration steps.

#### **Final Review**

Demo Address Line 1 Demo City 12345	
@ 123@123.com	
123-456-7890	
Vot a robot.	
V Not a robot.	
V Not a robot.	
V Not a robot.	

As the screenshot below shows, public users should see the following screen after successfully registering a RO account. An email should be sent to the registered email address of a temporary login password for Public users. Then, public users could click on the "Back to Login" button to be directed back to the login home page. If Public users did not receive the temporary password, they should reach out to the administrator, following the procedure as listed in the screenshot.

(	Registration Successful
	Congratulations! Your account has been created succesfully. Please check your e-mail for your temporary password. To fully activate your account, please follow the procedure below:
l	If you do not receive the confirmation email within the next hour, please check your Junk Mail folder and update your rules to allow emails from [DEQ@deq.state.or.us]
l	If you have any questions for account registration, please contact [DEQ@deq.state.or.us]
	Thank you for registering with the Environmental Data Management System.

Back to Login

### 4 User Account Management

Public users use the "User Account" management module to maintain their account information. In addition, public users with the "Responsible Officials" role will also be able to associate Consultant/Preparer user(s) to the facility.

### 4.1 **REP Website Login**

After entering the appropriate website address, Public users can view the REP login screen. To enter the REP-Public System, a valid user ID and password must be entered.



When Public users log into the REP-Public System, the Dashboard page will be opened. A list of standard features on the Dashboard page is as follows:

≡	Dashboard			[] 🕤 💽 Tester1
	Top Announcement Correspon	Submittals Permits & Transaction History	Upcoming Obligations & Unpaid Submittals	
	Obligation Sendback	Submittals		
3	0 0	MY SUBMITTALS (LAST 3 MONTHS)	Pending Submitted NEW SU	BMITTALS My Favorite Popular
	Submittals Submittals	No submittal record found.		Air Quality
	ANNOUNCEMENT	•		Air Quality
-				Operating General Permit
2	COPPESPONDENCE (LAST 3		•••	•••
	MONTHS)	Permits & Transaction Histor	у	
	All Programs 🗸	MY ACTIVE PERMITS	TRANSA	CTION HISTORY
2	🕰 Unclosed 0			
	Authority Unread 0	No record found.		POF
	Public Unread		***	
		Upcoming Obligations & Unp	aid Submittals	
		NEW OBLIGATIONS	UNPAID SUBMITTALS	
		No record found.	No unpaid sub	nittal record found.
>				

A. Click on the icon it to open up the main menu. Public users may navigate to different Modules by clicking on these icons.

- B. Public users may either click the 🖃 which expands the sidebar to show Modules accessible by clicking on them, or directly click on any icons from the sidebar to be directed to the corresponding Module, as the above screenshot shows.
- C. Click on the full screen mode. Public users could press Esc to exit the full screen.
- D. Click on the Public user icon **Tester1** to view user information or log out of the system. The Public users could view a summary of the account information, including account name, mailing address, and email. Public users could click on the "Logout" button to log out of the System. Besides, when clicked on the pencil icon, Public users are directed to the My Account Module to view and update account information.

Te	ster1 Nc	ame		[→ Logout		
		✓ <mark>RO</mark> ▲ ester1 Nam	16	ľ		
	2 tester@tes 112-312-3 test addres	st.com 121 ss, philadelphia,	PA 97209-101	11		
1		v5.9.21110	04133836			
Accour	nt				1	
8 RO Te	ester1 Name					
isic Info	Account Type	Password/Pin	Security Quest	dense Openentierete		
				tions Consultants	Verification	
Basic Info				Consultants	Verification	
Basic Info Title:	First Nar	ne	M.	I. Last Name	Verification	
Basic Info Title:	First Nar V Tester	ne r1		I. Last Name	Verification	
Basic Info Title: User Name	First Nar	ne r1	M. Email	I. Last Name Name	Verification	
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1	First Nar	ne r1	M. Email	I. Last Name Name	Verification	9
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer	First Nar V Tester	ne r1	M. Email teste	I. Last Name Name er@test.com	Verification	2
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer	First Nar	ne r1	M. Email teste	I. Last Name Name er@test.com	Verification	8
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer	First Nar Tester	ne r1	M. Email teste	I. Last Name Name er@test.com	Verification	
Basic Info Title: JSer Name tester1 Employer Vobile Phor 123-123-	First Nar Tester	ne r1	M. Email teste Job Titi	I. Last Name Name er@test.com le	Verification	A Upload or Drag File O
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer Mobile Phor 123-123-	First Nar Tester ne Number 1234	ne r1	M. Email Job Titi Office F	I. Last Name Name er@test.com le	Verification	Lipload or Drag File Ov
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer Mobile Phor 123-123-	First Nar Tester ne Number 1234 ess	ne r1	M. Email teste Job Titi	I. Last Name Name er@test.com le	Verification	Lipload or Drag File Ov
Basic Info Title: Jser Name tester1 Employer Vobile Phor 123-123- Vailling Addre Sountry	First Nar Tester ne Number 1234 ess	ne r1	M. Email Job Tit Office f	I. Last Name Name er@test.com le	Verification	لمنافع المنافع الم منافع المنافع المنا منافع المنافع منافع منافع المنافع منافع المنافع المنافع المنافع المنافع المنافع المن منافع المنافع مل منافع ال
Basic Info Title: Jser Name tester1 Employer 123-123- Mailing Addre Country () Uniter	First Nar Tester ne Number 1234 ess	me r1 Canada	Email teste Job Titi	I. Last Name Name er@test.com le	Verification	Lipload or Drag File Ov
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer 123-123- Mailing Addre Sountry Outleton	First Nar Tester ne Number 1234 ess	ne r1	M. Email teste Job Titi	I. Last Name Name er@test.com le	Verification	오. Upload or Drag File Ov
Basic Info ritle: Jser Name tester1 imployer Vobile Phor 123-123- Vailing Addre Sountry O United Vdress Lind Test Add	First Nar First Nar Testel ne Number 1234 ess d States O e 1 Iress	ne r1 Canada	M. Email Job Titi	Last Name Name er@test.com le Phone Number 000-0000x0000	Verification	오 Upload or Drag File Ov
Basic Info Title: User Name tester1 Employer 123-123- Mailing Address Country () United Address Lind Test Add	First Nar Tester ne Number 1234 ess d States O e 1 ress	ne r1	M. Email teste Job Titi	I. Last Name I. Last Name Phone Number 000-0000x0000 Address	Verification	순 Upload or Drag File Ov

### 4.2 Forgot Password

If you forget the login password for the REP system, click the "Forgot Password?" link on the login page to request a new password.

Next, enter the email address users prefer to receive a new password. Finally, click on the "Reset Password" button to send the request. The system will reset the password and send it to the indicated email address.



### 4.3 My Account

My Account Module consists of six sections:

- Basic Info
- Account Type
- Change Password/Pin
- Security Questions
- Consultants (visible for user account type = RO)
- Verification

/ly Account			[] 🗐 🕐 💽 Enfoted
2 RO Enfotech Tester			
Basic Info Account Type Password/	Pin Security Questions Consultants	reification	
Mrs. 🗸 Enfotech	n	A Tester	
User Name		mail	
certifier		tsoua@esf.com	
Employer		ob Title	
Enfotech		Tester	
Mobile Phone Number		ffice Phone Number	
732-839-1688		732-555-5555	요 Upload or Drag File Over
Mailing Address			
● United States ○ Canada			
Address Line 1		Address Line 2	
12 Main St			
City		State Zip Code	
New City		OR (Oregon) ~ 30002	

#### 4.3.1 Basic Info

In the "Basic Information" section, the user's First name, Last name, Employer, Job Title, Contact Address, Phone Number, and Email is displayed. Users may modify/update as needed if the fields have been previously populated.

168 R0 Testerl No	ime				
asic Info Account	Type Password/Pin	Security Questions	Consultants	Verification	
Basic Info					
Title:	First Name		M.I. Las	t Name	
~	Tester1		N	lame	
User Name		Em	ail		
tester1		te	ester@test.com	1	
Employer		Job	Title		
Mobile Phone Numb	er	Offi	ce Phone Numb	er	
123-123-1234		0	00-000-0000x0	000	🕰 Upload or Drag File C
Marillan Adda					
Manny Address					
Country					
<ul> <li>United States</li> </ul>	() Canada				
Address Line 1				Address Line 2	
Toot Address					
Test Address					

### 4.3.2 Account Type

The account type selected when the user account was registered will display here and it is not editable.

- Submittal Groups: Public users could select what they need to submit based on the submittal groups. Based on selections, the access right of submittals will be different.
- Linked Facilities: Facility linked to user's account will display in this section as well. Public users could unlink the facility and add a new facility from the dropdown list here.

Basic Infe	Account Type	Password/Pin	Security Questions	Consultants	Verification				
Account	t Type								
O Acc	ount type cannot be cl	nanged once assign	ed and saved.						
•	RO A Responsible Officer (R permit a consultant to pi	0) is responsible for repare a submittal in	ensuring that information the system through an ass	submitted to the Au lociated account, he	uthority on behalf of an as owever, only the RO may o	ssociated fac certify and su	ility (or facilities) is ac bmit the submittal.	ocurate through the	e portal. The
0 (	Consultant A Consultant may prepar Only an RO may certify a	re a submittal form fo nd submit submittals	or a Responsible Official (R	0). To prepare subr	mittals for an RO, a Consu	ultant accoun	t needs to be associat	ted with an RO acc	count (by the
0 (	General Public	privileges to pay invo	pices and respond to the A	uthority's public not	tices. A Public account di	oes not grant	access to preparing o	r submitting a sub	omittal in the
Submitt	General Public A Public account grants	privileges to pay invo	vices and respond to the A	uthority's public not	tices. A Public account di	oes not grant	access to preparing o	r submitting a sub	omittal in the
Submitt	General Public A Public account grants Ial Group mittal group will affect ir Area Source	privileges to pay invo t your access right o	orices and respond to the A	uthority's public not	tices. A Public account di	oes not grant	access to preparing o	or submitting a sub	omittal in the
Submitt	General Public A Public account grants al Group mittal group will affect ir Area Source () ee Payment ()	privileges to pay invo	orices and respond to the A of submittals.	uthority's public not nission Inventory al Compliance and	tices. A Public account di	oes not grant	access to preparing o Air Title V Permit	r submitting a sub	omittal in the
Submitt	General Public A Public account grants al Group mittal group will affect ir Area Source () ee Payment () Facilities	privileges to pay invo	orices and respond to the A of submittals.	uthority's public not nission Inventory al Compliance and	tices. A Public account di	oes not grant	access to preparing o Air Title V Permit	er submitting a sub	omittal in the
Submitt Submitt Sub A A F Linked	General Public A Public account grants al Group mittal group will affect ir Area Source (1) ee Payment (1) Facilities	privileges to pay invo	of submittals.	uthority's public not	tices. A Public account di	oes not grant	access to preparing o Air Title V Permit	er submitting a sub	omittal in th

### 4.3.3 Change Password/Pin

Type in the old password and the new password to change your password. Then, retype the new password to confirm. Public users can always change their PIN here, and the old PIN is not required.

The minimum data validation rule for the password is as follows:

• Password should be at least 8 characters long and should contain 1 number,1 alphabet, and 1 special character (@\$!%\*#?&).

The minimum data validation rule for the PIN is as follows:

PIN should be at least 8 characters long and should contain 1 number,1 alphabet, and 1 special character (@\$!%\*#?&).

168 RO	Testerl Name					
Basic Info	Account Type	Password/Pin	Security Questions	Consultants	Verification	
Password	1				PIN	
Old P	how password assword Password				New PII PIN shot special d	ow Pin N uld be at least 8 characters long and should contain 1 number,1 alphabet and character (@SI%+#7&).
Passw and 1 Confi	ord should be at least ( special character (@\$!9 rm New Pɑssword	8 characters long and 6*#?&).	should contain 1 number,1 a	liphabet	Confirm	n New PIN

### 4.3.4 Security Questions

Security questions are used for Public users to submit submittals. If you make changes to this section, keep them secure for future submissions. New security questions can be selected from the dropdown list and previous answers are not required for resetting.

=	My Accou	nt						
II	168 RO 1	lesterl Name						
0	Basic Info	Account Type	Password/Pin	Security Questions	Consultants	Verification		
3	10	What is the f	first and last nam	e of your oldest sibli	ng?			~
								0
-	20	where did yo	ou first meet your	spouse?				~
8	A							0
5								
	30	what is your	favorite hobby?					~
	A							٢
	<b>a</b> ©	what is your	favorite song?					~
	A							٢
	5 0	where did yo	ou graduate from	high school?				~
	A							۲

### 4.3.5 Consultant

This tab is only applicable for users with the "Responsible Officials" account type. This tab aims for RO users to manage a list of associates (consultants or preparers) to help the RO users prepare/enter data on the submittal form. This option is useful when RO users need expertise in data preparation or multiple facilities and require additional assistance. For example, the consultants would help prepare for the submittal drafts. Once the drafts are completed and ready for corresponding RO users to review/submit, RO users are notified for online submission.

The consultant/preparer linked to the account will display here. Users can add/link new consultants here by entering the consultant's email address and clicking on the "Find Consultant" button. As the screenshot below shows, RO users could search and associate consultants by email address. In addition, RO users would view the consultant info in the list view with information including consultant name, email address, phone number, mailing address.

=	Му Ассон	unt					
0	168 RO	* Testerl Name					>
V	Basic Info	Account Type	Password/Pin	Security Questions Co	verification		
3	No cor	John@consulta	sociated ye	t.			Find Consultant
	3	Test Cons	sultant	☑ John@consultant.com 圓 123 Main St, Maine 150	123-123-1234 003	Consultant LLC	0

As the screenshot below shows, RO users could click on the red trash can icon to remove either the consultant from the tab or any granted-permission records from the consultant. Before saving the newly added Consultant user, RO users should specify their permission, or the System would not save the consultant record successfully.

Name		Permissions	
	mo Consultant 2 lemogldemo.com 368 How Ln, New Brunswick 08902	PPCO 3 Facility	0
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	mo Consultant ukgest.com 23-455-7890 368 How Ln, New Brunswick 08902	PPOCI Facility	۲
Site/Submittal Permissions			
Sites	5	ubmittals	
O PPCC1 Facility in the second sec	AQD Self-Monito	ring Report	
	AND DEDMICENSIC	n conceptant	

RO users could click on the "Add Permissions to Consultant" button to grant access to sites/applications to the consultant. As the screenshot below shows, RO users could assign a site or submittal by selecting from the dropdown list. The dropdown list options should be based on what was granted to the RO users. After filling in the fields, RO users could click on the "+"

button and assign the task. A message "Permission added." should pop up on the screen if assigned successfully.

#### 4.3.6 Verification

For RO user account type users, their accounts need to be verified before submitting. To verify Pubic user's identity, the user may use the E-Verify feature to provide personal information including name, address, phone number, date of birth, and last 4 digits of SSN. The user may also print, sign, and mail the Electronic Signature Agreement (ESA) to the agency for user identity proofing.

	* Testerl Name				
Basic Info	Account Type	Password/Pin	Security Questions	Consultants	Verification
Perso	onal identity	is verified t	hrough ESA .		
E-Verify					Electronic Signature Agreement (ESA)
Please here is Make in pas move. If succ to cer Syste	e provide informatio s for E-Verify purpo sure you are using y it 6 months, please u cessful, you will be i tify/submit docume m will only allow you	n below to E-Verify y se only, and will not your personal HOME use your previous HO nformed promptly a nts to the Authority. u for 3 trials.	ourself, Information pro be saved locally. E information, If you hav ME address before your ad can start using your a Due to security reasons	vided e moved last iccount , the	<ul> <li>Please print and sign an Electronic Signature Agreement below and mail it the Authority at the address shown on the ESA. The Authority will verify yo identity and make a decision on your 'RO' request.</li> <li>You will receive an email notification after the Authority's decision is made The ESA will take some time because it involves the mail delivery, paper handling, human checks, and data entries.</li> <li>While you are waiting for the verification process to be complete, you wil able to access the system on a limited basis, but will not be able to subm report.</li> </ul>
your it your it option	E-Verify is not succe dentity with the data i to complete your id	essiul, it means the you provided. In thi lentity proofing.	system is unable to auth s case, please follow the	enticate 2 ESA	Print and sign an Electronic Signature Agreement.
First N	E-Verity is not succe dentity with the data i to complete your id Name *	esstul, it means the t you provided. In thi Jentity proofing. Middle Initial	system is unable to auth s case, please follow the Last Name *	enticate ≥ ESA	Print and sign an Electronic Signature Agreement.
First N	E-Verity is not succe dentity with the data to complete your id Name *	Addr	Last Name *	enticate 2 ESA	Print and sign an Electronic Signature Agreement.
First N	E-Verity is not succe dentity with the data to complete your id Name *	Middle Initial Middle Initial Addr State * PA	Last Name *	enticate 2 ESA	Print and sign an Electronic Signature Agreement.
First M Addre	e *	Middle Initial Middle Initial Addr State * PA Date of Birth *	System is unable to auth s case, please follow the Last Name * ess 2 Zip Code * 00000 SSN (Last	enticate e ESA	Print and sign an Electronic Signature Agreement.

Once all six sections are completed with correct information, click the pink disk-shaped "Save"



### 5 Annual Emission Inventory Form

When Agency users publish the Annual Emission Inventory report (for a given El year) for the facility, the new El reporting form will be generated in the public user's account. In addition, if the facility has a consultant linked, the new El reporting form will also show up in the consultant's accounts.

Public users can find the new Annual Emission Inventory report from Dashboard Module and Upcoming Obligation Module.

An example screenshot showing the EI reporting form on the Dashboard page is shown below:

	Dashboard	
	Top Announcement Correspondenc	Submittals Permits & Transaction History Upcoming Obligations & Unpaid Submittals
	Obligation     Sendback       2     0       Submittals     Submittals	Permits & Transaction History  MY ACTIVE PERMITS  TRANSACTION HISTORY
	ANNOUNCEMENT	No record found.
<b>*</b> 5	CORRESPONDENCE (LAST 3 MONTHS)	Upcoming Obligations & Unpaid Submittals NEW OBLIGATIONS UNPAID SUBMITTALS
¢.	Image: Constraint of the sector of the sec	1664       Air Quality       Image: Constraint of the second for the second f
>		

In the Upcoming Obligation Module, new submittals will display information about the facility's name, when the form is due, when the form is generated, and the period of the emission measured.

An example screenshot showing the EI reporting form on the Obligation Reports page is shown below:

bligation Reports		[] 🔊 🕐 💽 Enfotech
२ Search		I ~ 2 of 2 I Facility Name (A-Z)
Criteria  Keywords  Submittal di Submittal Type  Submittal Status Department Program Facility Name Address  Reporting Period  Due Dote	Air Quality       Air Quality         Annual Emission Inventory       Air Quality         C       1643       Nerx         C       03/15/2022       1 year later         C       01/07/2022       1 year later         C       10/29/2021       1 year later         C       10/29/2021       1 year later         E taine Test Facility       E taine Test Facility	
	2 of 2 D	<b>OA</b>

Public users need to go through a 5-step standard process to submit the selected EI report:

- A. Basic information
- B. Provide Attachments
- C. Provide Payment
- D. Review all mandatory requirements (online data entry, attachments, and payment)
- E. Submission

- 🙆 Emission Inventory	Air Quality			[] 🖄 🕜 🌒 Supe
2024 Open Basic Info Battachment	CPayment DReview	Submission	>	Send Back Attachments
Source Contact Stack Emis	Activity & Emission		İ	Submittal Information • Annual Emission Inventory
Enfotech Tester Tester	<i>⊌</i> 732-555-5555 ], 732-839-1688 )∰ 0276598457	廊 tsoua@esf.com 間 Enfotech 廊 12 Main St, New City, OR 30002	~	Air Quality     Emission Inventory     f40053 New
Facility Information	194400		_	Annual Emission Inventory
1500 North State Stre	eet, Clairton, PA 15025			All Attachment Requirements 💿 🔺
Emission Inventory Year:		Principal Product:		Others
2021			100	Other Supporting Documents
Number of Employees:		Employer Federal ID Number:	- 8	pdf doc docx xis xisx

### 5.1 Basic Info Tab

## A Basic Info

Under the "Basic Info" tab, there are five sub-sections in this Tab:

- 1. Source
- 2. Contact
- 3. Stack
- 4. Emission Unit
- 5. Activity & Emission

#### 5.1.1 Source

In the Source section, information of the facility will be pre-populated based on which facility this emission inventory form is for, and it is not editable. Emission Inventory year will be pre-populated as well. If applicable, public users can enter/update the following information:

- Principal product
- Numbers of employees
- Employer Federal ID number

_			0	~	0	
1) Basic	Info (2	) Attachme	it (3) Paymer	nt (4) Review	(5) Submission	
ource	Contact	Stack	Emission Unit	Activity & Emission		
		est Facility		15010	194553 Latitude 40.443283 Longitude -79.950222	
Emissic	an Inventor	<b>est Facilit</b> ) 400 FORBES / Year:	AV, PITTSBURGH	15213	194553 Latitude 40.443283 Longitude -79.950222 Principal Product:	

### 5.1.2 Contact

Contact section contains information of facility contact. Contacts entered in the Site Module for a specific facility will automatically appear in the Emission Inventory Form. For each contact, information about the contact's name, email address, phone number, title, and name of the company will display here. Public users could add one or more new contacts or delete any contact records from the list by clicking on the trash can icon on the right in this section.

Basic Info (2) Attachment	3 Payment 4 Review 5 Submission	
ource Contact Stack En	ission Unit Activity & Emission	
Contact Info	Info	
🛛 🚺 El Contact	<ul> <li>№ 12 Main St, New City, PA 15002</li> <li>@ user_e11@yahoo.com</li> <li>∰ ABC Company</li> </ul>	<i>J</i> 173-283-9168
8 Billing Contact	☑ 12 Main St, New City, PA 15002 @ user_e11@yahoo.com III ABC Company	৶ 173-283-9168

1) Basi	ic Info	Attachme	ent 3 Paym	nent (4) Review	5 Submission					
ource	Contact	Stack	Emission Unit	Activity & Emission	0					
	Contact In	fo		Info						
0	El Contac	;t		⊡ 12 I @ use ∭ ABC	Main St, New City, PA 15 r_e11@yahoo.com ℃Company	002	IT3-283-9168 🥜			
Cont	act Details									
Salu	tation		First Name		M.I. Last Name					
			EI				Contact			
Com	npany			Title			Email			
A	BC Compan	у			user_e11@yahoo					
Phor	ne			Mobile			Fax			
17	/ <mark>3-283-916</mark> 8	1		XXX-XXX-	xxxx		ххх-ххх-хххх			
Com	nments:									

#### 5.1.3 Stack

The stack section contains information about stacks connected to emission units for the facility. All stacks in this facility will be pre-populated and displayed in this section. Public users could add one or more new stacks here or delete any records from the list by clicking on the trash can icon on the right in this section.

	. 0		0					
1) Basic Info (2) Attachment (3) Po	iyment (4	Review	(5) Submissi	on				
Source Contact Stack Emission Un	it Activity	& Emission						
Stack Info								
<ul> <li>STOO1</li> <li>STOO1 Type Fugitive</li> </ul>								
Stack Identification								
ST001				ST001			Active	
Stack Type	Operation Sto	art Date Operation End Date		Operation End Date	Di		Dismantle Date	
Fugitive 🗸	mm/dd/yy	уу	Ċ	mm/dd/yyyy		m	m/dd/yyyy	Ľ
Actural Stack Height Above Ground (meter)	Building Heig	ht (meter)	at (meter) Building Length (meter)			Inside Stack Diameter (meter)		
Stack Orientation		Angle (degr	ree)		Shape			
	*							
Exit Gas Temperature (degrees Celsius)		Actual Exit G	Gas Flow Rate (	(cubic meters per second)	Exit Velocity	of Ga	s (meters per second	)
Description								
Common t								

- Stack Name: Enter the Name of the stack and every stack needs to have a unique name.
- Identifier: Enter the unique identifier for each stack.
- Stack Type: Select the type of stack from the dropdown list.
- Operation Start Date: Date when the stack starts to use.
- **Operation End Date:** If the stack was stopped using during the year, enter the date it occurred.
- **Dismantle Date:** If the stack was dismantled or rendered permanently inoperable during the reporting year, enter the date that this occurred.
- Actual Stack Height Above Ground: Enter the height of the stack in feet from the ground up to the discharge point.
- **Building Height & Building length:** Enter the height and length of the building with the stack.
- **Inside Stack Diameter:** If the stack is circular, enter the top inside stack diameter in inches. If the stack is rectangular, convert the area inside of the stack to a circular diameter using the following procedure:
  - o (a) Obtain the length and width in inches.
  - o (b) Calculate the area by multiplying the length times the width.
  - $\circ$  (c) Divide the area by 3.14.
  - $\circ$  (d) Take the square root of the value from step (c) to obtain the radius.
  - (e) Calculate the diameter by multiplying the radius (from step [d]) by 2.

- (f) Enter the diameter (from step [e]).
- Stack Orientation: Select the most appropriate orientation from the dropdown list.
- Angle: Enter the angle of the stack in degree
- **Shape:** Enter the most appropriate shape of the stack.
- Exit Gas Temperature: Enter the stack exit gas temperature in degrees Fahrenheit.
- Actual Exit Gas Flow Rate: Enter the stack exhaust volume in actual cubic feet per minute, at actual operating load and temperature.
- Exit Velocity of Gas: Enter the exit velocity of gas in meters per second.

### 5.1.4 Emission Unit

The Emission Unit section contains information on all emission units belong to the facility. All existing emission units from the previous year will be pre-populated in this section and cannot be removed. In addition, information about emission unit name, identifier, type of emission unit, installation date, operation date, dismantle date, remove date, design capacity, unit, and description will be included for each emission unit.

Emissio	n Invent	ory								
2073 0	pen									
1) Basic	Info (2)	Attachme	ent 3 Paym	nent (4) Review	5 Submission					
Source	Source Contact Stack Emission Unit Activity & Emission				0					
Emission Unit Info										
• 0	EU0001	Type Co	ooling Tower							
Genera	al Info									
Emiss	ion Unit Nam	ne		Identifier		Туре			Status	
EUC	0001			EU0001		Cooling Tower		<ul> <li>Active</li> </ul>	~	
Instal	Installation Date			Operation Date		Dismantle Date	Dismantle Date			
mm	/dd/yyyy			mm/dd/yyyy		mm/dd/yyyy			mm/dd/yyyy	
Desig	n Capacity			Unit		Description				
							~			
Comn	nent									
Associ	iate Control De	evice ()								
										年
Associ	iate Stack ()									
										7 <b>=</b>

Associate control device and associate stack can be selected from a dropdown list, and users can choose one or more from the lists. Additional emission units can be added in this section; users could delete any newly added records by clicking on the trash can icon on the right.

### 5.1.5 Activity & Emission

Information about activities and emissions for the emission units entered in the previous section will be entered on the "Activity & Emission" tab.

There are two sub-tabs in this section:

- Activity Information
- Emission

1 Basi	c Info	Attachment	3 Payme	ent (4) Review	5 Submission	
Source	Contact	Stack E	mission Unit	Activity & Emission		
					Batch Import Emission Data 👻	
		Emission (	Unit	Act	ivity	Emission
- 0	EU0001			20	200102 - Reciprocating	Criteria: 0 LE
	Type Coo	ling Tower		Thr	oughput 80 1000 GALLONS	VOC: 0 LBs
						HAP: 0 LBs

### 5.1.5.1 Activity Information Tab

In this "Activity Information" Tab, information about the process activities and materials used at the selected emission unit is entered. The Material Throughput data entered on the "Activity Information" Tab will be used for emission calculations in the "Emission" tab.

On the "Activity Information" Tab, the user will be asked to provide the following:

- Activity Detail
- Material Information

Activity Detail: In this section, the users need to enter information about the activities/processes at the selected emission unit as follows:

2073 Open								
1) Basic Info (2) Attachment	3 Payment	4) Review (	5 Submission					
Source Contact Stack Em	ission Unit Activit	/ & Emission						
Activity Information Emission								
Activity Detail								
Emission Unit	SCC Code							
EU0001	✓ 2 - Inter	nal Combustion	Engines > 202 -	Industrial ) 202001	- Distillate Oil	(Diesel) ) 20200	102 - Reciprocating	
Seasonal Material Usage Sci	hedule (If Throughp	ut is > 0, then	Seasonal Perce	ntages Must Total	100%)			
Seasonal Material Usage Sci Winter(Jan, Feb, Dec)	hedule (If Throughp Spring(M	ut is > 0, then ar-May)	Seasonal Perce	ntages Must Total Summer(Jun-A	100%) Aug)		Fall(Sep-Nov)	
Seasonal Material Usage Sci Winter(Jon, Feb, Dec) Operating Schedule	hedule (If Throughp	ut is > 0, then ar-May)	Seasonal Perce	ntages Must Total Summer(Jun-4	100%) Nug)		Fall(Sep-Nov)	
Seasonal Material Usage Sci Winter(Jan, Feb, Dec) Operating Schedule Hours per Day	hedule (If Throughp	ut is > 0, then ar-May) Days per	Seasonal Perce	ntages Must Total Summer(Jun-A	100%) .ug)	Days per Year	Fall(Sep-Nov)	

- Emission Unit: Select Emission Unit from the dropdown list.
- Source Classification Code: Select SCC code from the dropdown list
- Seasonal Material Usage Schedule: Enter the percentage of material used per season. January, February, and December are considered as winter; March through May is spring; June through August is fall, and September through November is fall. The total of all four seasonal percentages must equal 100%.
- Hours per Day: Enter the hours this emission unit or reporting group normally operates per day based on an annual average.
- **Days per Week:** Enter the days this emission unit or reporting group normally operates per week based on an annual average.
- **Days per Year:** Enter the days this emission unit or reporting group operated over the reporting year.

**Material Information:** In this section, the users need to enter information related to materials. The material from the dropdown list is identified by the SCC code selected from the previous section.

Emission Inventory						
2073 Open						
1) Basic Info 2) Attachment 3) Payment	4 Re	eview 5 Submission				
Source Contact Stack Emission Unit Ac	tivity & En	mission				
Material Information						
Material Code:		Material Throughput:		Unit Code:		
DIESEL FUEL - DIESEL FUEL	~	80		1000 GALLONS		~
VOC Content (Coatings or solvent)		Density:		Unit Code:		
						~
% by Weight						
BTUs (fuel): Unit:			Sulfur Content (fuel):		Ash Content (fuel):	
		Ť	% by Weight		% by Weight	

- **Material Code:** This field is automatically pre-filled if the SCC selected in the previous section has a material associated with it. Users could select from the dropdown list for the most appropriate material for the SCC.
- **Material Throughput:** Enter the amount of material identified previously that was processed, produced, applied, or combusted during the reporting year.
- Unit Code: Select the most appropriate unit from the dropdown list.
- VOC Content: This field is only required if the material is a coating or solvent. Enter the weight percent of the volatile organic compounds (VOC) contained in the throughput material, "as applied." "As applied" refers to the composition of the throughput material at the point of application. For example, if thinners are added to the throughput material, the VOC content of the thinner must be considered when calculating the weight percent of VOC "as applied."
- **Density:** In the first field, enter the density of the throughput material at standard temperature and pressure. In the second field, select the appropriate unit from a dropdown list.
- **BTUs:** Enter the average heat content in BTUs in the first field. In the second field, select the appropriate unit from a dropdown list.
- Sulfur Content: Enter the sulfur content in weight percent.
- Ash Content: Enter the ash content in weight percent.

Please see Appendix for additional information on Density, BTUs, Sulfur Content, and Ash Content.

#### 5.1.5.2 Emission Tab

After information about activity and material throughput for the selected emission unit is entered in the Activity Information tab, emission data can be entered or calculated. A list of "criteria" pollutants will be listed in the per Source Classification Code (SCC) entered in the Activity Information tab.

E	Emission Inventory								
	2073 Open								
	1) Basic Info 2) Attachment 3) Payme	nt (4) Review (5	) Submission						
	Source Contact Stack Emission Unit	Activity & Emission							
				Batch Import Emi	ssionData 🎽				
	Emission Unit		Activity					Emission	
	✓ ④ EU0001		20200102	- Reciprocat	ing			Criteria: 0 LBs	
	Type Cooling Tower		Throughput 80	1000 GALLONS				VOC: 0 LBs	
								HAP: 0 LBs	
1	Activity Information Emission								
	Autority internation Environment								
	Pollutant	Annual U Emission	nit Emission Basis	Emission Factor	Exponent	Emission Factor Unit	Control Efficiency (%)	System Calculated Value	Use System Calculated Value
	(Criteria) TOTAL ORGANIC COMPOUNDS	• Pot	AP-421 🗸	4.93	1	Pounds/		3944 Pounds	
	(Criteria) Sulfur dioxide 🗸 🗸	Po.	AP-421 🗸	3.97	1	Pounds/		3176 Pounds	

As an example, for the SCC code below (20200102), the system will auto add the following pollutants:

2 - Internal Combustion Engines > 202 - Industrial > 202001 - Distillate Oil (Diesel) > 20200102 - Reciprocating

- Carbon Monoxide
- Nitrogen Oxides (NO2)
- PM10, FLTRBLE
- PM2.5, FLTRBL
- Sulfur Dioxide
- Total Organic Compounds (TOC)
- Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)

If the AP-42 emission factors<sup>2</sup> are available per the selected SCC code, material, and unit, the emission factors (with the unit) will be listed on the "Emission" tab.

Pollutant	Annual Emission	Unit	Emission Basis	Emission Factor	Exponent	Emission Factor Unit	Control Efficiency (%)	System Calculated Value	Use System Calculated Value
(Criteria) Ammonia 🗸 🗸	0	Pounds	AP- 🗸	5.65	-4	Pounds/Tons		Pounds	•
(HAP) Arsenic 🗸	0	Pounds	AP- 👻	1.9	-4	Pounds/Tons		Pounds	

- **Pollutant name:** The name of pollutants will display and it is not editable.
- **Unit:** Default units for pollutants will be pre-populated and it is not editable for pre-populated and newly added pollutants.
- **Emission Basis:** The default basis for pollutants will be pre-populated and it is not editable. For newly added pollutants, the basis used to estimate emissions should be selected from a dropdown list.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> https://www.epa.gov/air-emissions-factors-and-quantification/ap-42-compilation-air-emissions-factors

- o CEM Continuous Emissions Monitoring
- Stack Test Stack test protocol approved by AQD. The most recent stack test (generally conducted less than five years previous) should be used. Stack tests must have been conducted following U.S. EPA protocol under conditions that represent current operations.
- o PEM Parametric Emissions Monitoring
- *Mass Balance* The method that allows estimation of emissions by analyzing inputs of a material to a process minus consumption, accumulation, and loss of that material during a process.
- Tank Model The TANKS model is an EPA computer software program that computes estimates of volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions from fixed and floating roof storage tanks. TANKS are based on the emission estimation procedures from Chapter 7 of EPA's Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors (AP-42), plus recent updates from the American Petroleum Institute. The TANK software can be accessed via the Internet at www.epa.gov/ttn/chief.
- Landfill Model This EPA model was developed by the Control Technology Center (CTC). The Landfill Air Emissions Estimation Model can be used to estimate emission rates for methane, carbon dioxide, non-methane organic compounds, and individual toxic air pollutants from landfills. The Landfill software can be accessed via the Internet at www.epa.gov/ttn/chief.
- AP-42 Emission Factor SCC code/emission factors that are in the REP reference table. These
  are either EPA or State emission factors. If you are using an emission factor not provided in the
  emission factor table at the bottom of the screen, you should select "Other" as the emission basis.
- Other If not previously identified, select "Other", and attach supporting documentation. Use of emission factors from the EPA's Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors (AP-42) or Factor Information Retrieval System (FIRE) that are not listed in the REP emission factor table should be referenced here.
- Emission Factor/Exponent: If you use a different emission factor, you need to complete these fields and provide supporting documentation. The supporting documentation can be uploaded as an attachment in the Attachment Tab.
- **Emission Factors Unit:** The emission factor unit code will be pre-filled with the unit code pounds divided by the unit code for the material.
- **Control Efficiency (%)**: Enter the control efficiency percent of the control device(s) for the reported pollutant. Control efficiencies may be listed on the equipment, in the equipment documentation, or by contacting the equipment supplier; leave this field blank if you do not have a control efficiency.

To use the emissions calculator with the system-provided AP-42 emission factors, please click the "Calculate" button.

(HAP) Xylenes (Mixture of o, m, and p Isomers)	AP-421 ✔	3.905	-2	/1000 GALLONS	
Add Pollutant     Calculate					

Users can enter user-calculated annual emissions in this field. If you agree to use the system-calculated value, click the "Use System Calculated Value" checkbox, and this field will automatically populate.



### 5.2 Attachment Tab

### B Attachment

In the attachment tab, all required files will show in the right section as the screenshot shows. The required form will have a \* sign next to the titles of the form. Users could either upload the electronic version of file records here or mail hard copies of required documents to ACHD.

2054 Open	Send Back Attachments
1 Basic Info 2 Attachment 3 Payment 4 Review 5 Submission	
When uploading an attachment, first click the file record and select a file type option for the uploaded file. If you want to mail the documents to the authorized agency, please navigate to the	Submittal Information
Review fab and use the "Mail To" checkbox.	Annual Emission Inventory
盘 Click to Upload or Drag Files Over Here	Air Quality Emission Inventory
	f40053 New     New
	Annual Emission Inventory
	All Attachment Requirements 💿 🔹
	Others
	③ Other Supporting Documents

Currently, there are no attachments required for the submission Emission Inventory report.

### 5.3 Payment Tab

### C Payment

There is no payment required to submit the Emission Inventory report. However, the annual invoice will be sent to the facility-based after the EI report is submitted (invoice amount is based on the actual emission data on the EI report). Hence, on the Payment Tab, \$0 is displayed as the due amount to submit the Emission Inventory report.

2024 Open	>
(1) Basic Info (2) Attachment (3) Payment (4) Review (5) Submission	
Fee         Paid         Credit           \$ 0.00         -         \$ 0.00         =         \$ 0.00	
Fee	Payment Transactions C
Fee is not required at this time.	No transaction record found.

### 5.4 Review Tab

### **D** Review

After filling in the basic information and providing attachment requirements, users can use the "Review" to make sure all the mandatory requirements for the report are met. The System will display a ' $\sqrt{}$ ' if users provided all mandatory information as instructed; the system displays a '×' if users failed to provide all mandatory information.

2024 Open
1) Basic Info 2) Attachment 3) Payment 4) Review 5) Submission
Review your submittal and any attachments. Save any changes you have made before returning to this page, and proceed to the Submission page.
Submittal Form(s) Summary
Please check if the following sections are completed. Click on the PDF (
✓ Emission Inventory Report
Payment
$\begin{array}{c} \hline Fee \\ s \ 0.00 \end{array} + \begin{array}{c} \hline Service \\ s \ 0.00 \end{array} - \begin{array}{c} \hline Faid \\ s \ 0.00 \end{array} = \begin{array}{c} \hline Due \\ s \ 0.00 \end{array}$
Mandatory Attachment
Attachments are not required for this Submittal.
Uploaded Attachment

### 5.5 Submission Tab

### **B** Submission

After entering/providing all mandatory data for EI report submission, the RO can submit this record to the Submission tab. The RO needs to enter/provide the following information below and click the "Submit" button:

- Agree to the "certification statement."
- Provide the answer to the security question
- Provide PIN

0	~	$\sim$	0	C				
1) Basic Info	(2) Attachment	(3) Payment	(4) Review	(5) Submission				
Declaration o	f accuracy information	on provided: *						
I hereby ce requirement	ertify that, based on nts.	information and	belief formed	after reasonable in	uiry, the source identified ir	this application is	in compliance with	all applicable a
I have	e read and agree	e to the above	certification	n statement				
Security Questi	ion & PIN Number							
Security Quest	tion: where did you gr	raduate from high	school? *					
Show Qu	estion Answer							
Show Qu	testion Answer							
Show Qu	uestion Answer							
Show Qu PIN: * Security Precau To prevent the securit the passwo	utions your information fr ys afeguards are al ord. Please note that	om being used i so powered by V at access to thes	nappropriately, 'eriSign's Certif e links, irrespe	, we maintain string ficates. Once we pr ective of the issuance	nt system safeguards as w ide you with a password, y of the User ID and Passwo	ell as physical and ou are responsible ord, may be termina	administrative prote for maintaining the ated by our discretio	ection. In additi confidentiality n at any time.
Show Qu PIN: * Security Precau To prevent the securit the passwo	utions utions your information fr y safeguards are al ord. Please note that	rom being used i so powered by V at access to thes	nappropriately, 'eriSign's Certif e links, irrespe	, we maintain string ficates. Once we pr ective of the issuance	nt system safeguards as w ide you with a password, y of the User ID and Passwo	ell as physical and ou are responsible ord, may be termina	administrative prote for maintaining the ated by our discretio	ection. In additil confidentiality n at any time.

### 6 Public Users Submit Invoice Payment in REP-Public Portal

### 6.1 Online Invoice Payment

When logged in onto the REP-Public Portal website, registered Public Account users (RO/Consultant/General Public) may navigate to the New Submittal Module to view the submittal options available by clicking on the icon in the left menu panel as shown below.

≡	New Submittal		C3	🕤 🕜 👩 enfoT
110 1+ 11	Q Search	< ( <b>E</b> )		Found Submittals
	Criteria	Others (2)		
	Keyword Submittal Name Description Form Code	Conline Invoice Payment	© 🚱 BovOnline) [70001] © Others	
	Programs			

Users in the New Submittal Module may select the "Online Invoice Payment" Submittal under the "Other" section.

Clicking on the "+" icon will open the selected submittal to begin "Online Invoice Payment". The screenshot below is an example of the "Online Invoice Payment" Submittal.

÷	Online Payment - FIMS	[] 🕲 🕐 👩 enfo'
	Image: Control of the second secon	Send Back Attachments
	Search Criteria	Submittal Information
	Account ID (From Your Invoice) Invoice Number	Online Invoice Payment
	Required.     Required.	① Others Fee Payment
		③ f70001 New
8		Online Payment - FIMS
Q		
<b>Å</b>		All Attachment Requirements 📀

The "Online Invoice Payment" submittal has four (4) tabs, including the Basic Info, Payment, Review, and Submission tab.

- Basic Info: is used to find the invoice record for payment.
- Payment: is used to pay the required fee. The user may pay online via credit card, ACH eCheck, or mail check/money order via postal mail.
- Review: to validate the entire submittal package to ensure that it meets the minimum submission criteria.
- Submission: is used to certify the data entered and submitted. The System would automatically generate a submission receipt. The system would auto-generate an email confirmation to acknowledge the receipt to the submitter.

Public account users should go through each tab, fill in the required information, pay the required fees, and review the submittal information. For example, in the "Basic Info" tab, users need to enter the "Account ID" and "Invoice Number" for the system to display the invoice info. Please review and confirm the information displayed before proceeding to payment.

Open Open		> Send Back Attachments
1) Basic Info         (2) Payment         (3) Review         (4) Submission		
Search Criteria		Submittal Information
Account ID (From Your Invoice)	Invoice Number	Online Invoice Payn
45	ANN2100002	
Invoice Information C		Others Fee Payment     f70001 New
Account ID:	45	Online Payment - FIMS
Account Name:	Tube City	
Invoice Number:	ANN2100002	All Attachment Requirements 📀
Invoice Period:	07/01/2021 ~ 06/30/2022	No attachment required for cur submittal.
Due Date:	01/10/2022	
Invoice Amount:	\$2,000.00	
Total Due Amount:	\$2,000.00	
Payment Information		
Total Paid Amount	\$0.00	
Total Paid Fee Amount	\$0.00	
Current Due	\$2,000.00	

In the Payment tab, users will need to first save the record by clicking on the disk icon (before payment information can be entered).

Dnline Payment - FIMS	<u></u>	
36 Open 1) Basic Info 2 Payment 3 Review 4 Submission		Send Back Attachments
Please complete the payment process.		Submittal Information Online Invoice Payme
Fee Pad Doe S 607.92 - \$ 0.00 = \$ 607.92	Pay Amount Due	Others Fee Payment     F70001 New
FIMS Online Payment © \$607.92	No transaction record found.	Online Payment - FIMS All Attachment Requirements ⑦
	Θ	No attachment required for curre submittal.

In the "Payment" tab, users may click on the "Pay Amount Due" icon to enter payment details; the users can select the payment options as eCheck/ACH, Credit card (for online payment), or check by mail.

An example screenshot for the "eCheck/ACH" payment option is shown below:

Online Payment - FIM	S		
36 Open			;
1) Basic Info 2) Paymen	(4) Submission		
Please complete the pay	ment process.		
Fee Pa \$ 607.92 - \$ 0	.00 = \$607.92		Ray Amount Due
●  Reck by Mail	Automated Clearing House (ACH) p When clicking button on the right, you will be	redirect to agency's payment portal to finish the	Redirect to E-Pay
1	payment. Once finished, you will be <b>redirect back</b> to the	system to finish the task.	
Fee		Payment Transactions C	
<ul> <li>FIMS Online Paymer</li> <li>3</li> </ul>	s 607.92	No transaction record found.	

Clicking on the "Redirect to E-Pay" button will open the online payment portal, as shown below. Please enter the required payment information (e.g., account number, routing number, etc.) to complete the payment process.

In the Review tab, users could review the submittal/payment information entered.

Online Payment - FIMS	[] 🖑 🕐 💽 enfoTe
36     Open       1) Basic Info     ② Payment       3) Review     ④ Submission	> Send Back Attachments
Review your submittal and any attachments. Save any changes you have made before returning to this page, and proceed to the Submission page.	ne Submittal Information Online Invoice Payment
Submittal Form(s) Summary Please check if the following sections are completed. Click on the PDF ( ) hyperlink to open/save/print the PDF form.	© Others Fee Payment © f70001 New
✓ Basic Info	Online Payment - FIMS
$\begin{array}{c} \hline & Free \\ $ $ 607.92 \end{array} + \begin{array}{c} \hline & Service \\ $ $ 0.00 \end{array} - \begin{array}{c} \hline & Paid \\ $ $ 0.00 \end{array} = \begin{array}{c} \hline & Due \\ $ $ $ 607.92 \end{array}$	All Attachment Requirements ⑦

In the Submission tab, the users would go through the certification section, Security Question & Pin Number section to submit. As the screenshot below shows, the users must answer one of the security questions and PIN to submit. Then, clicking on the "Submit" button would complete the online payment process

	the online payment process.
Submit	

Open       Basic Info       (2) Payment       (3) Review       (4) Submission	Send Back Attachments
Please complete the payment process.	Submittal Information     Online Invoice Payment
ertification Statement	
eclaration of accuracy information provided: *	
I hereby certify that I am the owner or Responsible Corporate Officer with financial and operational authority over the facility located at the address or location specified.	Others Fee Payment     F70001 New
	Online Payment - FIMS
I have read and agree to the above certification statement	All Attachment Requirements 🤭
ecurity Question & PIN Number	No attachment required for current submittal.
curity Question: what is your favorite hobby? *	
Show Question Answer	
N: *	

### 7 Appendix A: Acronyms & Definitions

AQD	Air Quality Division
BTU	British Thermal Unit
CAA	Clean Air Act
CEM	Continuous Emission Monitor
CO	Carbon Monoxide
GPS	Positioning System
HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant
NAICS	North American Industrial Classification System
NOx	Nitrogen Oxides
REP	Permitting and Enforcement System
Pb	Lead
ROP	. Renewable Operating Permit
SCC	Source Classification Code
SRN	State Registration Number
Sox	Sulfur Oxides
USEPA	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
UTM	Universal Transverse Mercator Grid Coordinates
VOC	Volatile Organic Compounds

**Actual Emission:** Amount of air contaminants emitted from a facility or emission unit over a given period of time, usually expressed as tons of air contaminant emitted per year (tons/yr).

Air Contaminant: A dust, fume, gas, mist, odor, smoke, vapor, or any combination thereof.

**Ash Content:** Please enter the ash content in weight percent. The table below provides acceptable ash content ranges for common fuels.

Type of Fuel	% Ash (by wt)
Anthracite Coal	0.01-11.00
Bituminous Coal	0.01-25.00
Natural Gas	0.00-0.05
Other Miscellaneous Fuels	0.01-25.00

### Table: Acceptable Ash Content for Common Fuel

**BTUs (fuel):** Please enter the average heat content in BTUs in this data field. The table below lists typical values for heat content, sulfur content, and ash content for the commonly used fuels.

### Table: Typical Fuel Values – SOLID FUELS

Type of Fuel	Heating Value BTUs	% Sulfur (by wt)	%Ash (by wt)
Bituminous Coal	13,000/LB	0.6 - 5.4	4 - 20
Anthracite Coal	12,300/LB	0.5 - 1.0	7 - 16
Lignite (at 35% moisture)	7,200/LB	0.7	6.2
Wood (at 40% moisture)	5,200/LB	N	1 - 3
Bagasse (at 50% moisture)	4,000/LB	N	1 - 2
Bark (at 50% moisture)	4,500/LB	N	1 - 3**
Coke (by product)	13,300/LB	0.5 - 1.0	0.5 - 5.0

#### Table: Typical Fuel Values – LIQUID FUELS

Type of Fuel	Heating Value BTUs	% Sulfur (by wt)	%Ash (by wt)
Residual Oil	150,000/GAL	0.5-4.0	0.05-0.1
Distillate Oil	140,000/GAL	0.2-1.0	Ν
Diesel	137,000/GAL	0.4	Ν
Gasoline	130,000/GAL	0.03-0.04	Ν
Kerosene	135,000/GAL	0.02-0.05	Ν
Liquid Petroleum Gas	94,000/GAL	Ν	Ν

### Table: Typical Fuel Values – GASEOUS FUELS

Type of Fuel	Heating Value BTUs	% Sulfur (by wt)	%Ash (by wt)
Natural Gas	150,000/GAL	0.5-4.0	0.05-0.1
Coke Oven Gas	140,000/GAL	0.2-1.0	Ν
Blast Furnace Gas	137,000/GAL	0.4	Ν

\* N= Negligible (numeric value not required to be reported, leave the field blank)

\*\* Ash content may be considerably higher when sand, dirt, etc., are present.

**Carbon Monoxide (CO):** Colorless, odorless gas that is toxic because of its tendency to reduce the oxygen-carrying capacity of the blood. (See criteria pollutants.)

**Control Device:** Equipment that captures and/or destroys air contaminants, e.g., scrubber.

### CONTROL EFFICIENCY:

#### Using the Control Efficiency to Calculate Actual Emissions:

If a facility has control equipment, the actual emissions after control can be calculated by multiplying the actual uncontrolled emissions by a controlling factor. First, calculate the control factor by subtracting the percent control efficiency (entered for Step 5) from 100 and dividing

that number by 100. Next, overall control efficiency is calculated by multiplying the capture efficiency by the control efficiency.

For example, if you have a control device with a capture efficiency of 85% and a control efficiency of 95%, the overall control efficiency would be  $0.85 \times 0.95 = 0.8075$  (80.75%). Use the overall control efficiency to calculate the control factor (100 - 80.75)/100 = 0.19. Using the control factor, we can estimate the annual emissions after control. Using the control factor above, if an emission unit has actual uncontrolled emissions of 129,600 lbs/year; the actual emissions after control would be 129,600 lbs/year x 0.19 = 24,624 lbs/year or 12.31 ton/yr. You would enter 12.31 tons into the Annual Emission filed.

### What if I Don't Know the Control Efficiency for a Pollutant?

If you do not know the control efficiency for a specific pollutant, you can use the controlled emission factor from the emission factor table to calculate the "default control efficiency." You can identify a "controlled emission factor" by clicking on the "+" icon next to the "Emission List" label to load the emission factor window. Pollutants listed without a radio button next to it are "controlled" factors. The control device will be listed in the control device column. The corresponding controlled emission factor and exponent will be in the "factor" and "Exp" exponent columns.

The steps and example below explain how to use this controlled emission factor to calculate a default control efficiency:

1) Divide the "controlled" emission factor by the "uncontrolled" emission factor;

2) Subtract that number from 1 and carry four decimal places; and

3) Multiply the final net number by 100. Enter this number as the Weight Percent Control Efficiency.

Default Control Efficiency = 1.0 – (Controlled EF/ Uncontrolled EF) X 100

#### EXAMPLE:

- SCC = 1-02-002-04 Pollutant = PM10, FLTRBLE,
- Emission Factor (CONTROLLED) = 7.200 E -2 with BAGHOUSE
- Emission Factor (UNCONTROLLED) = 1.320 E 1 UNCONTROLLED
- Default Control Efficiency = 1.0 (0.072/13.2) x 100 = 99.45%
- Note: The SCC and the pollutant MUST be identical for the two Emission Factors used to calculate the Weight Percent Control Efficiency.

**Criteria Pollutants:** Pollutants for which National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) are set. The following pollutants must be reported because 1) they are a criteria pollutant, or 2) they result in the formation of a criteria pollutant:

- Carbon Monoxide (CO)
- Lead (PB)
- Non-Methane Organic Compounds (NMOC)\*
- Oxides of Nitrogen Nox
- Particulate Matter (PM)
- Particulate Matter less than 10 Microns (PM10, Primary)
- Particulate Matter less than 10 Microns, Filterable not water-soluble (PM10, FLTRABLE)

- Particulate Matter less than 2.5 Microns (PM2.5), Filterable not water-soluble (PM2.5, FLTRBL)
- Particulate Matter less than 2.5 Microns (PM2.5), Sum of Condensables & Filterable (PM2.5, PRIMARY)
- Sulfur Dioxide (SO2)
- Total Non-Methane Organic Compounds (TNMOC)\*
- Total Organic Compounds (TOC)\*
- Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) \*\*

\* These pollutants can be used as VOC surrogates if the VOC emission factor is not available.

\*\* Emissions of VOC contribute to ozone formation, for which a NAAQS has been set.

**Density:** Density is required for materials that have a mass throughput. Please enter the density of the throughput material at standard temperature and pressure. For liquids, use pounds per gallon (LB/GAL). For solids and gases, use pounds per cubic foot (LB/FT3). The table below lists the densities of some common materials.

Material	Density	
Paint	10-15 LB/GAL	
Varnish	7 LB/GAL	
Water	8.33 LB/GAL	
Southern Pine	40 LB/FT3	
White Oak	48 LB/FT3	
Sugar Maple	43 LB/FT3	
Elm	35 LB/FT3	

### **Table: Typical Density Values**

**Emission Factor:** A factor used to estimate air emissions by multiplying it by the material throughput expressed in the appropriate unit code.

**Emission Unit:** A device or group of devices that operate together with a dependency between devices and emits or has the potential to emit any air contaminant. An emission unit contains at least one process device and may contain control devices and related stacks. Examples of an emission unit include:

- single degreaser (degreaser only)
- topcoat painting line (booths, ovens, incinerator, stacks)
- the chemical manufacturing process (reactors, condensers, dryers, baghouse, stacks)
- coal-fired boiler (boiler, stack)

**Emission Unit Activity:** The flow of material into and out of processes or between devices that may discharge to the atmosphere. Materials are related to processes by Source Classification Codes (SCC).

Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP): The 188 chemicals listed at 112(b) of the Clean Air Act.

**Lead:** A heavy metal that is hazardous to human health when breathed or swallowed. Its use in gasoline, paints, and plumbing compounds has been sharply restricted or eliminated by federal laws and regulations. (See criteria pollutants.)

**Material:** Any product or substance, including elements, compounds, or a mixture thereof, in any physical state (solid, liquid, gas), including more than one physical state at the same time, that flows through a process. Examples include fuel, coating, solvent, metal, grain, chemical, product.

**NAICS:** This code is a numerical indicator of the primary type of activity at a business.

**Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2):** An oxide of nitrogen that is regulated because it can cause lung and eye irritation, can contribute to the formation of acid rain, and reacts in the atmosphere to form ozone and smog. (See criteria pollutants.)

**Ozone:** At ground level, ozone is a noxious pollutant and is the major component of smog. The source of ozone is the chemical reaction of volatile organic compounds (VOC) and nitrogen oxides (NOx). The ozone's health effects are breathing problems, reduced lung function, asthma, eye irritation, stuffy nose, and reduced resistance to colds and other infections. In addition, the environmental effects of ozone can damage plants and trees. Smog also causes reduced visibility. Ozone is regulated by the control of VOCs and NOx, which are precursors to ozone. (See criteria pollutants.)

**Particulate Matter (PM):** Fine liquid or solid particles such as dust, smoke, mist, fumes, or smog found in air emissions. (See Criteria Pollutants.)

**Percentage of Throughput:** Enter the percentage of throughput for the SCC code selected. The totals of these percentages must equal 100%.

**PM-10:** Standard for measuring the amount of solid or liquid matter suspended in the atmosphere. PM-10 refers to the amount of particulate matter smaller than ten micrometers in diameter. The smaller PM-10 particles penetrate to the deeper portions of the lung, affecting sensitive population groups such as children and people with respiratory diseases.

**Source Classification Code (SCC):** An SCC describes an air-polluting activity and links the activity to an "approved" set of materials, units, and emission factors. The SCC is an eight-digit, numeric code that characterizes an air polluting activity by source type; device type; related raw material, fuel, or product; control device; and release location and type.

The code is divided into four fields that represent the categories shown below:



**Sulfur Content:** Please enter the sulfur content in weight percent. The table below provides acceptable sulfur content ranges for common fuels.

Type of Fuel	% Sulfur (by wt)
Anthracite or Bituminous Coal	0.02-7.00
Distillate	0.01-2.00
Natural Gas	0.00-0.05
Residual Oil	0.01-5.00
Wood or Wood & Bark	0.02-5.00
Other Miscellaneous Fuels	0.01-7.00

### **Table: Sulfur Content Ranges**

**Stack:** A conduit for air contaminants.

**Sulfur Dioxide (SO2):** A heavy, pungent, colorless, gaseous air pollutant formed primarily by industrial fossil fuel combustion processes. (See criteria pollutants.)

**Volatile Organic Compound (VOC):** Any compound or mixture of carbon compounds that participate in smog-formation reactions.